10.

11,

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING AGENDA
NOVEMBER 4, 2025 7:00PM
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, BERLIN CITY HALL, 2¥* FLOOR
MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AND IS HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBLE
CITY MEETINGS CAN BE WATCHED LIVE OR RECORDED
ON THE CITY OF BERLIN YOUTUBE PAGE @CITYOFBERLIN5623

Call to order/Roll Call
Seat Virtual Attendees (if necessary)

General Public Comments. Registration card required (located at podium in Councii Chambers).
Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per registrant.

Approval of Minutes. RECOMMENDATION: Approve the minutes from the October 7, 2025
Committee of the Whole meeting,

Intreduction of Senior Center and Recreation Facilities Director, Susan Kiener.
RECOMMENDATION: Welcome Senior Center and Recreation Facilities Director.

Letter of support for Berlin Commumity Development Corporation application to the Thrive Rural
Wisconsin program. RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Mayor to sign on behalf of the
Common Council and Planning & Development Director Ludoiph to submit a letter of support for
the BCDC’s application to the Thrive Rural Wisconsin program.

Consider recommendation of the Parks & Recreation Commission to amend City Ordinances to
include city owned parks for no smoking or vaping. RECOMMENDATION: Discussion and
action as appropriate,

Update regarding publication of Meeting Minutes summaries. RECOMMENDATION:
Discussion and action as appropriate.

Update regarding the Request for Proposals for Professional Auditing Services.
RECOMMENDATION: Dxiscussion and action as appropriate.

Budget preparation update, RECOMMENDATION: Public Hearing for the 2026 Budget has
been scheduled for November 11, 2025, at 6:30PM. Anticipated Levy $2,732,529. Anticipated
City Mill Rate $6.19 per $1,000 value. Borrowing of $293,536 to be approved prior to budget
approval and included in the levy.

Adjourn,

Note: In adherence to the City of Berlin Public Meeting Participation Policy, public participation will be allowed under each
agenda item at the discretion of the presiding officer, with the exception of the Consent Agenda. Attendees must register their
intention to participate on either a general comments section or a specific agenda item prior to the meeting by filling out a
Registration Card, which can be obtained fron the Internet, City Clerk's office or in the City Hall Council Chambers af the
podium. Registration Cards should be turned in prior to the meeting to either the presiding officer or City Clerk.

Please note, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accominodate the needs of the disabled individuals through
appropriate aids and services. For additional information fo request services, contact the municipal Clerk at 920-361-5400.

Note: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be
in attendance in the above stated meeting to gather information: no action will be taken by any other governmental body except
by the governing body notified above.




COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING MINUTES
OCTOBER 7, 2025 7:00PM
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, BERLIN CITY HALL, 2™ FLOOR

Call to order/Roll Call- Mayor Burgess called the meeting to order at 7:00PM. Alderpersons
Boeck, Hill, Nighor, Przybyl, Sorenson, and Stobbe were present. Staff also present were Cify
Administrator, Jessi Balcom; Deputy-Clerk Treasurer, Brittani Majeskie; Street Superintendent,
Seott Zabel; Berlin Police Chief, Brian Pulvermacher; EMS Director, Evan VandenLangenberg.

Seat Virtual Attendees (if necessary) - None

General Public Comments. — Daniel Hoppa of 235 S. Wisconsin St., spoke to ask the council to
consider the official abandonment of portions of River St. and Wisconsin St. Hoppa reviewed
various maps of the area and properties. City Administrator Balcom will send this concern to the
Plan Commission.

Approval of Minutes. RECOMMENDATION: Approve the minutes from the September 2, 2025
Committee of the Whole meeting, Alderperson Przybyl made a motion to approve the September
2, 2025 Committee of the Whole meeting minutes, with a second by Alderperson Sorenson. Voice
vote carried.

Introduction of Interim Lakeside Municipal Court Judge Troy Damsteegt.
RECOMMENDATION: Listen to presentation. Lakeside Municipal Court Judge Troy Damsteegt
introduced himself to the Council. Damsteegt was appointed by the Lakeside Municipal Court
Executive Committee on August I, 2025, Damsteegt has many previous years of experience in law
enforcement. Damsteegt explained Lakeside Municipal Court serves 23 communities across 3
counties, holding court in 5 locations throughout that jurisdiction. The main office and clerk are
in North Fond du Lac. Lakeside Municipal court handles traffic, municipal ordinance, fire, and
building code violation cases as well as marriages.

Discussion of Uniform Deposit Schedule. RECOMMENDATION: Review the Police Chief’s
recommended updates to the Uniform Deposit Schedule (list of the fees and bonds for all
municipal citations.) Discussion and action as appropriate. Berlin Police Chief, Brian
Pulvermacher, presented recommendations to modify the existing Uniform Deposit Schedule.
Pulvermacher confirmed that traffic fines are set by the State, and those fines cannot be raised.
He confirmed that the deposit portion received by the County and the City may be the same, but
the fees to the offender are less because Lakeside Municipal Court costs are less than Circuit
Court costs. Pulvermacher confirmed the City can raise fines on City Ordinances. Discussion on
potential increased revenue with increases to the Uniform Deposit Schedule. Pulvermacher
confirmed that despite the police officers being active in the communily, many of the Municipal
Ordinance Violations aren’t wrilten because they are rare, especially second or third offenses
due to subsequent offenses spanning a calendar year. Pulvermacher noted that increased deposit
amounts that cause increased citation amounts will likely increase legal fees as offenders may
feel more of a need to contest a higher citation rather than pay a lower citation. Pulvermacher
cautioned against a blanket increase to the deposit fees and suggested setting fees to be similar fo
surrounding communities. A motion to recommend updates to the Uniform Deposit Schedule as
suggested by Chief Pulvermacher to the Common Council was made by Alderperson Stobbe with
a second by Alderperson Nighor. Voice vote carried.

Resolution #25-10 Designating Waushara County as the Collecting Official for the Issuance of
Dog Licenses for the City of Berlin or Waushara County Residents. RECOMMENDATION:
Review and recommend adoption of Resolution #25-10 Designating Waushara County as the
Collecting Official for the Issuance of Dog Licenses for the City of Berlin or Waushara County
Residents. City Administrator Balcom updated the Council that Waushara County is updating
their tax recording system to the same system as Green Lake County. This change will also




include Waushara County issuing dog licenses and accepting the associated fees. Discussion that
this change would affect Ward 1 residents. Alderperson Stobbe made a motion to recommend to
Common Council the adoption of Resolution #25-10 Designating Waushara County as the
Collecting Official for the Issuance of Dog Licenses for the City of Berlin, Waushara County
Residents with a second by Alderperson Przybyl. Voice vote carvied.

Resolution #25-11 Intention to Join the Statewide Public Safety Interoperable Communication
System For the City of Berlin. RECOMMENDATION: Review and recommend adoption of
Resolution #25-11 Tntention to Join the Statewide Public Safety Interoperable Communication
System For the City of Berlin to allow Berlin EMS to apply for an EMS Radio grant. EMS
Director, Evan Vandenl.angenberg, updated the Council that the State of Wisconsin is updating
the radio system to 700/800MHz and Berlin EMS is rumming on VHE which is a much lower
band, in the 150MHz range. The State has made 80/20 grants available for upgrades to radio
systems. Upgrades would cost approximately $50,000, with Berlin EMS costs of approximately
$10,000. VandenLangenberg confirmed that this update would allow increased communication
across move departments. Alderperson Stobbe made a motion to recommend to Conmon Council
the adoption of Resolution #25-11 Intention to Join the Statewide Public Safety Interoperable
Communication System for the City of Berlin to allow Berlin EMS to apply for an EMS Radio
grant, with a second by Alderperson Hill. Voice vote carried.

Budget preparation discussion. RECOMMENDATION: Provide direction to staff regarding
general budget preparation and Capital project annual borrowing, employee wage increases,
implementation of a recycling fee and short-term borrowing. City Administrator Balcom updated
the council on the City of Berlin budget timeline; The budget must be noted for public hearing in
the paper as a Class 1 notice at least 15 days prior, therefore the budget needs to be completed
by October 17" to allow notice to be published in the October 23" paper. The public hearing will
be scheduled for November 11" at 6:30pm. City Administrator noted that to complete the budget,
a few more items need to be decided; The Council needs to decide the Capital Project annual
borrowing, which will affect this year’s borrowing; The council needs to determine what the
employee wage increase should be. Balcom explained that employees will see decreases in their
overall take home pay due to changes in the WRS contributions for next year and the increase in
healthcare premium contributions; The Council also needs to consider the implementation of the
recycling fee. However, data from Waste Management isn’t complete which would delay the
completion of the budget. Therefore, City Administrator Balcom suggested moving forward with
changes to the Municipal Ordinance and Fee Schedule in order to be ready to make this change
for 2027, and note for this year recycling is part of the levy and short-term borrowing. City
Administrator suggested that these decisions will impact the total amount of short-term
borrowing needed, and would be noted specifically on the public hearing notice. Discussion on
short-term borrowing and potentially pulling additional projects from the CIP to add to the total
borrowing amount. Adam Ruechel of BAIRD, confirmed that short-term borrowing is estimated
at approximately $98,000 with an additional borrowing to cover recycling costs. Discussion
about long-term borrowing of $2 million every-other year allowing planning over two years and
savings on interest and costs of issuance. Discussion on employee wages. City Administrator
Balcom suggested that the council not officially adopt the Wage Study as presented as it may be
difficult for the City to fund. Balcom stated she values the study as it compares wages against
sitmilar communities and within the City, which considers external and internal equity that will be
helpful when hiring. Evan VandenLangenberg confirmed the EMS budget approved a 3% wage
increase. Council members discussed wanting City employee positions, wages, and years of
service, not names, listed on the pay scales for the Common Council meeting on 10/14/25, with a
closed session discussion regarding specific employees to follow. Discussion on a 3% wage
increase to keep employee morale and maintain employee retention. Discussion on long-term
capital borrowing. The Council verified long-term borrowing of 82 million every other year.
Mayor Burgess asked for visuals on the average homeowner impact to be prepared. Adam
Ruechel estimated that every $100,000 in borrowing comes to roughly a 3 cent mill rate increase
and 83 tax increase, dependent on how much a home is worth. City Adminisirator Balcom gave




10.

11.

12,

13.

14.

15,

an update on the status of the recycling fee. Waste Management is still working on a geo-location
audit and doesn’t anticipate the audit 1o be completed before the budget needs to be finalized.
Balcom suggested that recyeling remain on the levy and to move forward with ordinance and fee
schedule updates. Discussion to not move the recycling fee lo a special fee unless the recycling
Jfee can be charged accurately. Discussion on the approximate shori-terim borrowing amount.
City Administrator Balcom approximates the short-term borrowing amount to be about $300,000.

Review Wage and Compensation Study., RECOMMENDATION: Discussion and action as
appropriate. The Council will review this at the meeting 10/14/25.

Capital Improvement Plan discussion. RECOMMENDATION: Provide direction to staff
regarding the projects to be included, amended or removed from the draft CIP (including, but not
limited to, the Berlin Aquatic Center) and determine the planned annual borrowing for Capital
projects. Review and recommend adoption of the Capital Improvement Plan. Discussion on
adding The Berlin Aquatic Center 1o the CIP. Alderperson Hill suggested adding the pool to the
CIP with 3 to 5 years of borrowing, with consideration of about half of the funds being donated
by the community, and the other half, equaling $1.5 to 2 million, through borrowing. Discussion
that the CIP is a wish list of projects to be funded, and the CIP can be updated annually. Adam
Ruechel discussed options for adding the pool to the CIP and suggesied adding it to the CIP as a
one page addition which could be inserted in the budget of a fisture year, if appropriate. City
Administrator will add the pool to the CIP for the next meeting on 10/14/25. Discussion on the
amount to use as the previous quote is becoming outdated, and less reliable.

Amend Ordinance Chapter 54 Solid Waste and Recycling. RECOMMENDATION: Discussion
and action as appropriate. City Administrator Balcom explained that the current ordinances need
to be updated to show a special charge for recycling. City Administrator received Council
direction to have the attorney amend the ordinance and bring a final ordinance back to the
Council.

Amend Fee Schedule to reflect implementation of Recycling Fee and 2026 updates.
RECOMMENDATION; Discussion and action as appropriate. Discussion to take the recycling
Jee for 2026 off the fee schedule and note that it will be implemented in 2027. A motion was made
by Alderperson Stobbe to recommend to Common Council the amended fee schedule for 2026
with the noted update to the recycling fee for 2027, with a second by Przybyl. Voice vote carried.

2025 Emergency Medical and Ambulance Service Contract with the Town of Aurora.
RECOMMENDATION: Discussion and action as appropriate. City Administrator Balcom
explained that in 2023 there was an EMS contract with the Town of Aurora. The City is
requesting the Town of Auroa pay for EMS services in 2024 and 2025. Evan VandenLangenberg,
EMS Director, confirmed that costs are impacted by response time. Discussion fo update the
contract draft to include 24 hour coverage and change the year from 2024 to 2025. Alderperson
Hill made a motion to recommend to Common Council approval of the Emergency Medical and
Ambulance Service Contract with the Town of Aurora for 2025 with the amendments as
indicated, with a second by Alderperson Nighor, Voice vote carried.

Motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. 19.85 (1)} (e) Deliberating or
negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session.
(Purchase of 169 Ripon Road). Alderperson Przybyl made a motion to convene into closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stais. 19.85 (1) (e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. (Purchase of 169 Ripon Road), with
a second by Alderperson Hill. Voice vote carried.

Closed session commenced at 8:15PM,




16. Reconvene into open session and take appropriate action as a resuit of closed session discussion.
Alderperson Hill made a motion fo reconvene into open session with a second by Alderperson
Stobbe at 8:29PM. Voice voie carried.

17. Adjourn. 4dlderperson Hill made a motion to adjourn with a second by Alderperson Sorenson.
Voice vote carried. Meeting Adjourned at 8:30PM.

Respectfully submitted by
Brittani Majeskie, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer




rlin

WISCONSIN

==  On the Fox

City of Berlin

108 North Capron St » P.O. Box 272 » Berlin, Wisconsin 54923-0272
(920) 361-5400 ° Fax: (920) 361-5454

11/04/2025

Berlin Community Development Corporation

RE: Letter of Support for the Berlin Community Development Corporation’s
Application to the Thrive Rural Wisconsin Program

108 N Capron Street

Berlin, WI 54923

Dear Members of the Berlin Community Development Corporation,

This letter serves as an official endorsement from the City of Berlin — Common
Council for the Berlin Community Development Corporation’s (BCDC) application
to request to join the second cohort of the Thrive Rural Wisconsin program.

The BCDC is essential to our community, committed to promoting economic
growth by aiding both existing and new businesses in Berlin, Wisconsin. We
value their continuous efforts to rejuvenate our downtown area, especially in
meeting the demand for commercial spaces.

The Thrive Rural Wisconsin program emphasizes "Small Business Development
Projects and Programs" and "Community Based Economic Development," which
aligns with the BCDC's goals and provides an important opportunity to help
create Commercial Kitchen or Community Kitchen spaces. We understand that
completing such projects requires specific skills in addition to BCDC’s current
resources and programs.

We support the BCDC's application for this technical assistance program and
believe it is a significant investment in our community's future.

Sincerely,

Catrina Burgess, Mayor of the City of Berlin, on behalf of the City of Berlin
Common Council



SISCLINSIN

FIGE OF RURAL PROSPERITY

OFFICE OF RURAL PROSPERITY

Empowering Rural & For r:orein;?rmation,
M L watch a webinar
Tribal Communities

recording, review the

frequently asked

The Thrive Rural Wisconsin program, led by the Office cuestions, or contact one
of Rural Prosperity, is designed to help rural and tribal of our Rural Development
communities bring together local leadership, define Specialists.

shared goals, and access the resources they need to

make lasting change.

Downlosd FAG B
Offered at no cost to communities, the initiative
provides project management, an exclusive

Jim Cleveland

opportunity to apply for a WEDC Capacity Building Rural Development

Grant, and technical assistance for efforts related to: .
Specialist




!FECE OF RURAL PROSPERITY I

QFFICE OF RURAL PROSPERITY

« Rural Capacity Development & Growth SpeCidibl
paul.occonor@wedc.org

Program Benefits: 608.2106723

Would you like to see

« Community assessments the impact on other

*« Work plan development for priority projects and communities?
project management support
« Fundraising mapping/ funding identification. Review past Thrive Rural
» Crant writing consulting {process guidance, Community projects,
review, etc.).
» Creation of customized toolkits and resources to
build capacity in grant writing, grant compliance
or Thrive Rural focus areas.
+ Referrals to consultants, state agencies, and
federal programs that help advance the projects
identified in the work plan.
» Exclusive invitation to apply for predevelopment
grants (~$25,000 per year) to advance a project
and prepare for state and federal grant
applications. {ex: feasibility study, plan
development, architectural renderings,
engineering studies, mapping, business plan,

curriculum design, etc.).
Eligibility:
Eligible partners are limited to:

+ County economic development organizations

* Non-profits




dIFICE OF RURAL FROSPERTY I

QOFFICE QF RURAL PROSPERITY

P B EREVED 1) L PRl W T AL BRI E ] SR et ML AN Ny P DL BT e

inhabitants. Priority given to communities and
organizations located within FY26 Wisconsin Distressed

Counties List.

« Thrive Rural Wisconsin is intended to complement
and support the assistance provided by
Wisconsin's Regional Economic Development
Organizations [ (REDOs) and Regional Planning
Commissions £ (RPCs), UW-Extension [, and the
Creat Lakes Inter-Tribal Councit [4 (GLITC).

* Must advance at least one of the Thrive Rural
Wisconsin focus areas.

» Partners must demonstrate readiness, community
buy-in, and projects should leverage applicable
resources.

« Thrive Rural Wisconsin is a fit for communities
that have a dedicated point person for staff to
work with supported by a leadership team and are
prepared to seek and manage significant funding
sources {$50k-$3M).

* Be willing to commit to two years to develop a
work plan and move projects within the work plan
forward from Jan. 2026 — Dec. 2027.

Process:

+ Step One: Fill out and submit the community
interest form. Prepare the following documents to

attach to your application:




- i
FIGE OF RURAL PROSPEMTY

QOFFICE OF RURAL PROSPERITY

» Step Two: Email an overview of leadership team
members with bios and roles to
ThriveRuralWl@wedc.org. The leadership team
should reflect the communities engaged in the
process and technical partners and expertise that
fit the program focus areas. Letters of
engagement from participating partners
outlining their role and commitment to the

prodrarm are encou raged‘

» Deadline: The Community interest Form will be
available at 6 a.m. on Oct. 15. The form will be
open for submissions through Nov. 13 at 5 p.m.
CST. While this is a non-competitive program, all
interest forms are subject to a review process, and
no applicant is guaranteed to receive a capacity
building grant from WEDC.

Community Interest Form £

Priority will be given to applicants located in counties
on the FY26 Wisconsin Distressed Counties List.

Note: All applications submitted and contracts
executed related to WEDC’s "Capacity Building Grant
[ - Thrive Rural Wisconsin ” will be subject to Program

Guidelines and Wisconsin Law.




‘FECE OF RURAL PROSPERETY I

CQFFICE OF RURAL PHE}SPERITV

Download the slide deck used during the webinar.

\/\/ isconsin Economic
Developrment Corporation
WEDC @ The Hub

2352 5 Park S, Sulte 303
Madlison, W 53713

GOS210.6700

TERMS OF USE PRIVACY RPOLICY

SITER ARCHIVE WEDCORG




CITY OF BERLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEEETING

STAFF REPORT
TO: Common Council
FROM: Jessi Balcom, City Administrator
AGENDA ITEM: amend City Ordinances to include city owned parks for no smoking or vaping
MEETING DATE: November 4, 2025
BACKGROUND

Johanna Brotz, Commercial Tobacco Prevention and Treatment Coordinator for Fond du Lac, Green Lake,
Waushara and Marquette Counties and Lauren Olson, Deputy Health Officer/Health Educator for Green
Lake County Health Department presented to the Parks & Recreation Commission at their October 1,
2025 meeting on Smoke-free Parks and Outdoor Areas.

The materials that Ms. Brotz and Ms. Clson provided to the Commission are enclosed for your
information. Within these materials contain information on tobacco-free parks, a slide presentation
entitled Smoke-Free Parks Protect their play, keep smoke away, and two sample ordinances.

Staff is looking for direction from the Council as to next steps in the Council’s consideration of this
recommendation.




CITY OF BERLIN PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION

MEETING

MINUTES for WEDNESDAY October 1, 2025 4:30 PM

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, BERLIN CITY HALL, 2ND FLOOR

1. Call to Order / Roll Call
Meeting called to order at 4:30 PM

Present: Tim Bending, Kayia Reeves, Bruce Tetzke, Dr. Emmett Durtschi, Kamie Jorgensen

Absent: Bobbie Erdmann

City Officials Present: Jessi Balcom, Scott Zabel
2. General Public Comments

e Nothing to report

3. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes
A motion was made by Dr. Emmett Durtschi to approve the minutes from September 3, 2025 as
presented, with a second by Bruce Tetzke. Moticn approved.

4. Approval for Revenues and Expenditures.
A motion was made by Tim Bending to approve the Revenue and Expenditures Report as presented,
with a second by Bruce Tetzke. Motion approved.

5. Request for Trunk or Treat Event at Riverside Park

e Requested by Robert Frost of Sons of the Amvets of Redgranite, Post 13

e Sunday Oct. 26" 11:00 AM to 7:00 PM {Date and time amended from original request)
» Primarily held during city trick or treating scheduled

e No charge for use of park because the parks are technically closed at this time of year.

+ Restrooms and facilities are offline at this time.

A motion was made by Kamie Jorgensen to waive the 45-day notice and associated fee, with a second by
Bruce Tetzke. Motion approved.

A motion was made by Bruce Tetzke to approve the requested use of park and Veteran’s gazebo, with a
second by Kamie Jorgensen. Motion approved.




6. Presentation on smoke free parks/outdoor areas

e Presentation by Lauren Olsen, Deputy Health Officer of Green Lake County Health Department

s Also accompanied by Johanna Brotz, Commercial Tobacco Prevention and Treatment
Coordinator with Fond Du Lac County Health Department/East Central Alliance for Nicotine
Prevention

¢ Entertained Amending Ordinance to include all City owned property

e Grants or funding is available to offset the costs of signage

A motion was made by Bruce Tetzke to recommend to Commen Council amendment of City
Ordinances to include city owned parks for no smoking or vaping, with a second by Dr. Emmett
Durtschi. Motion approved.

7. Update to City of Berlin Ball Field Use Agreement

A motion was made by Dr. Emmett Durtschi to approve proposed changes to Ball Field Agreement
with a seconded by Bruce Tetzke. Motion approved.

8. Review of amended Park and Recreation Fees

e Cost for Fire Wood increased from $4 to $5 per 8 pieces
e Dump Station Fee Raised from $6 to $10 per use

A motion by Kamie Jorgensen was made to approve amended fees and send to Common Council,
with a second by Bruce Tetzke. Motion approved.

9. New Business
¢ Nothing at this time.

10. Old Business

¢ Nothing at this time.

11. Adjourn
A motion to adjourn was made by Bruce Tetzke, with a second by Kamie Jorgensen. The meeting

adjourned at 5:10 pm.

Respectfully Submitted by — Secretary Tim Bending




Healthier Kids. Cleaner Spaces.

Q00O

Stronger Communities.

o R
o As

Purpose of the Ordinance ;
Protects youth from exposure to smoking and vaping 48

Why It Matters for Youth _
Seeing adults smoke normalizes unhealthy bet

Health & Environmental Benefits

Reduces secondhand smoke and vape aerosol
exposure :

Community Impact b
Parks become more welcoming for families




COMMERCIAL TOBACCO-FREE PARKS AND

OTHER OUTDOOR RECREATION AREAS

Enacting

commercial tobacco-free

parks and outdoor areas would:

e

REDUCE SECONDHAND EXPOSURE
There is no safe level of exposure to

secondhand smoke or e-cigarette aerosol.
Even outdoors, you can be exposed to the

high levels of it if someone is smoking or
vaping nearby.

KEEP KIDS SAFE
Cigarette butts, e-cigarette pods and

cartridges, and tobacco related litter are
picked up and mouthed by babies and
toddlers.

REDUCED COSTS
Tobacco-free policies may help to reduce

maintenance costs due to reduced staff

time needed for litter and waste clean-up.

ELIMINATE FIRE HAZARDS
Smoldering cigarette butts, matches, and

e-cigarettes can cause fires.

FAMILY FRIENDLY PARKS
Keeps the park as a family-friendly

environment that models healthy
behaviors.

Protect their play-

EAST CENTRAL

ALLIANCE

for Nicotine Preavention

keep smoke away!

Easy to Implement, |
Easy to Enforce.

Clear & Simple - Posting
signs at park entrances and
playgrounds is usually all that's
needed.

Self-Enforcing — Most people
voluntarily follow smoke-free
rules once they're aware of
them.

Community Support — Public
education campaigns and word
of mouth quickly spread
awareness.

Proven Success — Hundreds ‘
of communities across the U.S.
have implemented smoke-free
parks with minimal issues.
Low Cost — The main
expense is signage, which is
affordable and often grant-
funded.

Positive Norms — Families
and community members help |
remind others, making |
enforcement simple.

\Y

Public Health

Prevent,Promote.Protect.







"uLiey pajej24-022eqo) woJj ‘usJpjiyo
Aj[eadss ‘QuoAians 1pa30.1d Jey} SJUSWUOIIAUS JIY]|EY J0J 91e20APY
'$92JN0S3a. Uoessad pue swelsoid uonuaAald YinoA poddng

"3uideA pue 032eqo} Jo SHSH Yjjeay Sy3 Inode AJUNWILIoD Sy} s3eonp3
"sadkeds olignd Ul saijjod 83.4)-022E70] pUE 23.4}-2>0WS 2]0W0id

10} SJaguisw AJUNWIWOD JaYjo pue ‘YnoA ‘sjuaied

‘sa1puase yijesy ‘sjooyds Jay1a803 SuLiq am ‘AjJjed0T ‘S ows pueypuodas

0} a/nsodxa 9onpaJ pue asn 022eqo] JuaAa.4d 0] SHIOM ey} uonijeod
paseq-AjuNWILIO? e S| (ND3) UoIUSASId SUII0IIN 40} 2JUel|y [enua) jse]

E: zo_._._._<ou

e




JUSWIUOIIAUD 3)es

e ul Aejd aAi3oe ‘Uny saunsug - sadeds ajes &
YInoA Joj suliou

99.J-20Ws ssjowold - stqeH AyyesH &
|le 10§ Aupjesy

pue S3.)-1913] Aels SHiied - ues|) Aejd
OIS puBYpUO0ISS |njwiey

W0l ajes sppj sdeay] - Aseg aypealg




"$1S02 3Jedyljesy AJiunwiwiod SuliMO|
‘swisjgo.d yjesy wisl-3uo] JuaAs.d sdjpH e
"SHo}J uonuaaud odoeqo) spoddns —l—.—-d<.u—|—
pue sa210y2 3jA3say] Jolyyeay sa8einooud e U—Jma mm .—-azoE
"uaJpjIy2 1snl jou ‘sucAusns &
10J S[eallayd JIX0) 0] 2INSOAXS S9INPIY e

3,

- Sun
..wv.w...._..\anm
\ 3~ BRPUC

_.:urf_.
i u——ﬁmu Ef

SI1LINMIND) AHITYH 2

xcEnm:

SA1I1T0d AHLTY IH w6 oy 1o 1

STIR VST echllaEl il s A N



"SISLINOY pue Siaguusu AJunwiwiod

0] SUiIAUI pue sAljoeIe Si0W aJe syled Jaues)) e
$92.N0S Ja)eM Aj[e1dadsa -uoeujuweiuod

[EJUSWIUOIAUS puUe Ja13i| 90npal Syied S94)-DJoWS e
saoeds Jjjqnd pue

Syled Ul wis)l paJs1yl| 3sow ay) aJe syng ay1aJesdl) e




"3uisq
-|[leMm pue yjjeay senjeA AJunuiwiod
Jno ey} a3essawl oy} suayiSusng e
"9SN 022eq0] 30Npail
0} SHI0Y2 spim-AJiunwwod spoddng e
"DJows
0] SuJiels wo.l) YInoA saSeinodsip
JOIABUS( 924)-230LWS SUIlSPO|A] e

& n... {
i ¥]

SN Sy
.r-'..."fph” o

TVIDOS .._»nmm_“__
“$3OVHN0INT



SI9ANgswoy 01 3A

(el sSiied liesyp ¢

Pooyiaqu3isy
92.11-20llg

dssseanuj e .
AlAnoe ssauisng Agueay PUE Lenes ) ‘Wistinoy 23einoalis
SediSuniaul ﬁmc_muc_ms-_

IS = Awouooy [E907 S)ioddng

L\ ®

SIOJISIA pUe ‘stispg ‘Sajitlels oy
Denze syjed Rltleayiistes)s _mmaa<a_=:EEou 515009 v o

PUE Salsusq ‘SpunoygAe

.m:_%umncm__
sting sno)egio IS9MI

UBSUIisn)) pue
HMed Sp101y )

“oNI[915 e85 g SUppId tads
SO — papagpy dnues)y 5597 &

=1Nsodxs ayols pue
[S92NPsY ~ 53507 o

|d oy S3eulep SS9
S193png 2UBUSIUIRIA]

HRuodss oy peyejs,
EIUIeSH oMo il o

AN
u_:wzs._

H



DA

"3]dwis JUSWS2I0JUS SUR{EW ‘SISY10

puiw day siequuisl AJUNWWIOD puUe SSIjiue — SULION SARISOd
‘papuni-juels usyo
pue sjqeploye st yoiym 93eusis sl asuadxa ulew ay] - 3sony mo §
"SSNSSI [BULILILL YIIM SHed 331)-a3ows pajuswsjdul
9AEY ‘SN Y3 SSOJOE SARIUNWILIOD JO SPIPUNH — SS9IINS USAOI *.
‘Ssausleme peaids Apjainb yinow
JO piom pue sugieduues uoizednps aljqnd - Moddng Ajunwiwio) | &
"Wisy} Jo aleme aJ AsU 22U0
S| 924J-240Ws MOjjoj AjLiejun|oA 3|doad ISO|A| - Suiiojuz-Jies T
‘Papasu sjeys ||e Ajlensn si spunosdAeld
pue ssoueijus died Je susis Sulysod - sjduus g Jea|) /=

Lerwriter and

Lo

1oint BOURTuM




j9UOAISAS 1oy ALeay pue ‘Uea]d ‘SJes aJe Jey) Syied S3ea1d ued am Jay3a8o |

_ "3SN 022Bq0)

YINOA S20npa. pue ssoloyo Ayjjeay SjepoiA — 24n3n4 ay3 193304 S -
"apld [ed0|

spoddns pue ‘eadde s3500q ‘ASUOW SIABS — AJUNWILLIOY) 199)04d BT e

‘|| 10} SuiodjeM 240w pue Jausald Jaues|) - syled 199104d &) e

"9){0US PUBYPUO0DSS WOoJ4 9344 saoeds Ayjleay ‘9Jes - spiy| 108304 7]




JuswiLindag YlioaH AlunoD sxoT usais) -
JoIoNPS YHooHROH0 GHOSH ANdaq
uos|O UaJnbT A

SS|UNOD alSNbID|A| , |
U0 DJOYSNDM ‘SX07 USa.S) D07 NP puo
JOJoUIPJIOo0D) jusSuoaa| ]
PUID UOIHUSASId 039000 co_Ew\ém_ 0220qO] [OIDJSWWIOD)

2]0.4g bUUPYo

e < _ _ _ m



Model Recreational Areas Commercial Tobacco-Free Ordinance’

Section 1: Purpose
1.1. The [City/County] is committed to providing safe and healthy environments,
1.2. Commercial tobacco use is the leading cause of preventable death and disease in the U.S,

1.3. Exposure to secondhand smoke has negative health impacts and the U.S. Surgeon General
has determined there is no risk-free level of exposure to secondhand smolke.

1.4. Electronic smoking devices, more commonly referred to as electronic cigarettes or e-
cigarettes, typically contain nicotine, which is highly addictive, and their use (1) often: closely
resembles and purposefully mimics the act of smoking, (2) produces an aerosol or vapor of
undetermined and potentially harmful substances, (3) is increasing among both adults and youth,
(4) is especially concerning among youth because of the negative impacts of nicotine on the
developing adolescent brain, (5) threatens to re-normalize smoking, potentially jeopardizing
tobacco control effoits of the past and present, and (6) creates confusion and leads to difficulties
enforcing smoking prohibitions,

1.5, Tobacco products, including electronic sinoking devices, consumed in outdoor public places
are often discarded on the ground as an environmental blight, diminishing the beauty of
recreational areas, requiring additional maintenance expenses to clean up, and posing a fire risk
as well as risk to human and animal health through potential ingestion and contamination of

water sources.

1.6. The tobacco industry advertises at and sponsors recreational events to foster a connection
between tobacco use and recreation.

1.7. The [City/County] believes parents, coaches, leaders, and officials involved in recreation are
role models for youth and can have a positive effect on the lifestyle choices they make.

1.8. The [City/County] recognizes that nicotine is an addictive substance and tobacco-use
cessation is a process.

1.9 The [City/County] believes commercial tobacco use is detrimental to the public’s health and
has determined that prohibiting the use of tobacco products including electronic smoking
devices, in all [City/County] recreational areas serves to protect the public’s health, safety and
welfare. :

1 yyis, Stat. §101.123 {4m) provides autharity of local jurisdictions to enact more stringent smoke-free laws than
state law. Howaever, the statute requires that any ordinance that limits smoking in outdoor areas must only
regulate “public property” and must permit any person in charge of a restaurant, tavern, private club, or retail
establishment In an area covered by the ordinance to desighate a smoking area that Is a “reasonable distance”
from the entrance of the establishment. {See § 3.2 of this ordinance for the required exception.) The
circumstances for this exception may include a restaurant that leases the space in a park owned by the jurisdiction.




Seetion 2: Definitions
2.1, All times means 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

2.2. Electronic smoking device means any device that may be used to deliver any acrosolized or
vaporized substance to the person inhaling from the device, including, but not limited to, an e-
'cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, vape pen, or e-hookah.

2.3. Public Event means an event which is open to and may be attended by the general public,
including but not limited to, such events as concerts, fairs, farmers’ markets, festivals, parades,
performances, and other exhibitions, regardless of any entrance ticket, fee, or age requirement.

2.4 Recreational area means all facilities, parks, trails, open space, and other property which is
owned, leased, rented, contracted, used, or controlled by [City/County] for recreation purposes,
including parking areas, streets, and sidewalks located within a patk or recreational area. The
term includes, but is not limited to, restrooms, spectator and concession areas, playgrounds,
athletic fields, beaches, picnic areas, golf courses, walking paths, gardens, hiking trails, bike
paths, riding trails, roller and ice-skating rinks, skateboard parks, amusement parks, zoos, and
aquatic areas.

2.5. Smoking means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated cigar,
cigarette, pipe, or any other lighted, heated, or activated product containing, made, or derived
from nicotine, tobacco, cannabis, or other plant, whether natural or synthetic, that is intended for
inthalation. Smoking includes carrying or using an activated electronic smoking device or e-
hookah.

2.6, Tobacco product means:

1. any product containing, made of, or derived from tobacco or nicotine that is intended for
human consumption or is likely to be consumed, whether inhaled, absorbed, or ingested
by any other means, including, but not limited to, a cigarette, cigar, pipe tobacco,
chewing tobacco, snuff, or snus;

2. any electronic smoking device as defined in this policy and any substances that may be
aerosolized or vaporized by such device, whether or not the substance contains nicotine;
o,

3. any component, part, or accessory of 1) or 2), whether or not any of these contains
tobacco or nicotine, including, but not limited to, filters, rolling papers, blunt or hemp
wraps, hookahs, and pipes.

“Tobacco product” does not mean drugs, devices, or combination products authorized for
sale by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, as those terms are defined in the Federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act.

2.7. Tobacco use means the act of smoking or the use of any other tobacco product in any form.

Section 3: Policy




3.1. Tobacco use is prohibited at all times in or on all recreational areas,

3.2, In accordance with Wis. Stat. §101 123 (4m), the person in charge of a restaurant, tavern,
private club, or retail establishment located in an area subject to this ordinance may desighate an
outside area that is a reasonable distance from any entrance to the restaurant, tavern, private club,
or retail establishment where customers, employees, or persons assoctated with the restaurant,
tavern, private club, or retail establishment may smoke.

3.3 It is not a violation of this policy to use sacred tobacco in or on recreational areas as part of a
Native American religious, spiritual, or cultural ceremony or practice.

Section 4: Compliance and Enforcement

4.1, Signage will be posted at strategic locations at all recreational areas to inform the
community and recreational area users about the policy. Ash receptacies for the disposal of
tobacco products, including, but not limited to, ashtrays or ashcans, will not be permitted where
smoking and tobacco use is prohibited.

4.2 [City/County] staff and volunteers will be notified about this policy through the employece
manual.

4.3 The success of this policy depends on the consideration and cooperation of all. Enforcement
of the policy is a shared responsibility of [City/County] staff and recreational area users,
[City/County] staff will communicate the policy to event organizers. [City/County] staff will also
make periodic observations of recreational areas to monitor for compliance.

4.4 Organizers and attendees at public events at recreational areas are required to abide by this
policy, Organizers of public events are responsible for communicating and ensuring compliance
with the prohibitions in this ordinance.

4.5 Any individual found violating this policy will be reminded and asked to comply before
being asked to leave the recreational area. [City/County] staff found violating this policy may be
subject to disciplinary action. [City/County] is committed to assisting all persons who smoke,
including staff, in overcoming tobacco dependency. Persons who violate this policy may be
referred to Wisconsin’s Tobacco Quit Line, 1-800-QUIT-NOW, which is a free tobacco

cessation resource,
[OPTIONAL] Section 5: Violations and Penalties

5.1 A person who smokes or uses tobacco products in an area where smoking and using fobacco
products is prohibited by the provisions of this Article may subject to the following penalties:
1. The person will be asked to refrain from smoking or using the tobacco product, and to
extinguish, turn off; or put away the tobacco, cannabis, or plant product.
2. Failure to abide by the request under subsection 1 will result in the person being
asked to leave the recreational area.




3. Failure to abide by the request under subsection 2 will result in the person being
asked to leave the recreational area and the person may be subject to a civil fine not
exceeding fifty dollars ($50).

4. Any subsequent violation may result in g civil fine not exceeding fifty dollars ($50).

5.2 An organizer of a public event who permits their agents, employees, or public event
attendees to violate this Article shall lose the privilege to host or obtain a permit for a public
event in a recreational area of this [City/County] for at least one year starting from the date of the
public event at which the violation occmred.

5.4 Bach instance on which a violation of this Article occurs shall be considered a separate and
distinet violation.

Section 6: Severability

If any provision of this ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, is
held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this ordinance that can be
given effect without the invalid provision or application. Bach invalid provision or application of
this ordinance is severable.

Section 7: Effective Date

This policy is effective on [effective date].
Appropriate [City/County] Official Date




"pamofe 51 soneeid Io ALowusIeo eImno 16 “[eniuids ‘SnOISUaL URIUSTTY SAREN 2 JO ed S8 S2alz RUOEMIUSL 110 JO U] 099840 PAISES 30 351}

. “Aouade JUSTISIIOIUS ME] ¥ 10RIT0Y ARTE sedo]dia 1o “opiado Yoferrem Sanmo o1 ‘sostmaid sip 9ABS] 0} S9S132E TONR[0IA I mostad o
J1 "sesimaid aU @Awe] 03 nosIad 2 Jse AJoreIpouIu [{eys Die 205AI0S 2STYSS [[BYS sakodms 1o “oiado “SaSeuny Yawao a1y ‘onperd asoego) 213 s 10 Junjous dogs Jou ssop vosted sy 31 enpoad ceoeqos 9k Buysn
doss 10 pavotas Saraq Jonpord sy GstfyKe o) 2[RIV SR JO WYL I sionpoad 0soeqo; Sursn 1o Sopjomzs s ot WosIaE ¢ WAnp TRYS S{oury sty Aq pole[nFal eote we yo sa£o7dms 1o ‘Tojesado TeSeuRm I9ume Ty

“notoe LTeUndisIs o) 10a(qns 5q Azt Aofod s1 Fueiols pIno Jeis A10) ol [eonesital $ THOS NoRsaf 01 alqns Sueq 21ozeq £[dMmeo 0] poyse ple pIpEINSI 3G Tk Aoyed SIG SULR[OLA PUROJ TERPIATE AT

"3l dTI02 J0f 1010 0] SEAIE [BEOYZAIoal JO SUOHEAIRSGO STpowad W os[e [ Jeis A1) "sIsZInesio
242 01 497704 31 afeormETZOD LM FRNS D SI1051 BalE [PU0LEaI0al PUB JEis 17 70 AIIqIsTodsel pelens © st Aoxod o JO JUSTIEOIONEY (7 10 uonersdocs pe UORRISPISTOS 1 10 Spusdap Aotjed s1g) Jo s8300n8 Sy,

“£orod 91 nOR 51950 BOIR w_aoﬂmmbmn P AJTUnNUIIng U ULIOfT 0} SUoEs0] 218e7ens 18 peysod aq [[Lm a8zudiy
BLIrGEn g
unzop Ane 1t jenpozd ooorqe) Isiro Aus Jo 250 S} IO SUD{OWS JO (OB AW ST T CITE0L

-asodmd paacidde me gons 10 A[5108 Plos PUB pajeien Suleq 8t pie Sesodmd jesipettt 1atpo 107 10 Jonpoad
eonopuadsp 0ooeqo) © 57 Joupord UONESSs0 0002q0) B SE S[ES SN 10} TORENSTAUIPY Stic] pie poog ‘A 910 4q pascidds useq samy yeq sprpesd TONENLITIOd 10 *Se01A9D ‘sTnp testy 10u sa0p Jonpord 00eqo].,

‘sedid pue “symjocty “sdewa dume 1o 39njq stoded Surjes ‘SieHl ol P} 300 NG “SHIPNOU “PURGINT JO 0332G0T SUIEINeD 353l 16 AT J00 10 Tatpeyae (g 16 (1 o A1ossasoe 1o “ued Jusuodusos Lue

10 "9UROOTU SUTRIIOS SIURISNS SY} JOU 10 IF[ILM "2a1ASD Yors £q paritoden 10 Pozososse 54 ARLU fe1 Seouelsgns Site poe Ao1jod SIq U1 PoUIIep Se 921A9p SUIOILS SIU0R0e1e Ale

ISNOS 10 TS ooorqol Buimeys *ouveqer odid “edio ‘opsieln v oy pana]
JoU ne *SEPIIUT "SULSTI 15130 AU £G poIsIBul JO "POQIOSqE PRTBYL DS "PIINSTOD 54 O A9 ST 10 HeHEEMSos Wellny 10) PIPUSIUL S§ YU SECOT 10 000PG0) WO PIALIRP 30 J0 apeul ‘Surzuos pnpord Kue

‘ST SPNpOIl GoTeq0L

: YEHOOY
-0 10 ‘Tiad adea ‘adid-e ‘refio-s ‘snomBie-s te ‘o) panw] 10T Mg Surpnpour ‘atlaep <1 wody Bureyny wosted 213 o0f sourisqos paznodea 10 pazi{0so1se LTE I9AT[SP O] PISh 2q ARHIL 1B SotAdp AR STest BSOS SUTOHE SIUSH35T:

‘seare ogenbe pue “sooz “sped juswrsnwe ‘syred plecqsyens ‘st SunEs-99L pue J3[[0L ‘sTRy Supl ‘syed oxig
“sjren Sungy ‘suspsed ‘smyed Supes. ‘sesinos JoB seore opuoid ‘sayseeq ‘Spjol sneTge ‘spanoderd ‘seale WOISSOOUCO PUR I072I0dS ‘SIMOONSST 0} PRHTII] 10K S G ‘SSpRIo] TIIoy ST BT [2uORRSRal 10 yred B UItpim pesoo]
SH[EMDPIS PUR ‘sieans “seare Burimed Bmpnou ‘sasodmd Jeuoyrerssi puz syted 10§ A1) Aq pey{onuoo 10 “PIsn PRIYRNUCD “Pajual ‘Pasear ‘pamme Auadeoid o pue “soeds tado ‘sren “sjred ‘soliIIoR} TTe SURINI BITE [BEONEAI00Y

201A0p SUDOIS 0ION5]e T2 20 S5T STR SOPI[SUL OS[e  SUIOWS,, aReiEiAS 16 TRICIBE TqieTs ‘eenfUe
P yexocy SUPNIU] ‘MoREeYul 107 pepuei $onpoxd lteld 10 ‘eunodIn ‘0ncRqo) poIEey 0 pemdl latpo Aue 1o ‘odid o ‘onemeBio ‘refto paresy Jo pogs Aue Surfires o ‘Bmumg ‘Suenxe ‘Fueym tuesm [eys SHFHUT

SeaTe [EU0N221097 [T2 J2 PanIquyoad St (5)(3)66°$0p W PIUGSP ST 950 009Rq0L PUE {T)@)60 ¢yt W paUsp S1 Suryoms (1 )(a)60 ¢o mopoas Japim paptacyd se 1dsony “BTEOES
“yredarens 20 yoesq Spen “spue] yed A0 UL JAUre)o sErIaAaq SIIO0I]B-UOL 10 SI[0NeTe sserd Ae gsessed 1o ‘Buniq 01 [YAVRIN 54 [[RUS 1] SISTRIN0) S5EIAASE SSB[0)

"SORIIqISURS J[qRROSERI JO Uosted B SQIISID JET) 95100 AT $7 POUSP ST HOROYS SHE 30 sesodmd 91 J0F 9510 Sessessuu) Tuenieds(] CoppeIay PUT STed 3 3o Ml pazioyne v wox jnurad mania & Sumreqo 181y
IROWLM $ISI0T ATRES09LUN I0 SUPUN 30npold {81 $30IASP [EAIHeYoal JH10 A 10 ‘SATIga4 J0301T *sje0q Toamod ‘Siomlensd siojonr ‘sioyeads puoj ‘syenn punos elado o} uosiad Lo 107 [NLMETUR aq J[eys 1] *SESt0] KTesse0a0ay

“pug] yred Lo Lre nodn szamo o siogye eosiod 10 Aradord 37) 3A0MEI 10 *4SS{0W ‘QImSIP ‘Aonsep o3 tosiad Lte 107 [ryme[UD 5q [1RYS 1] THEGIC) JO ARG0I]

puz xred Groy Aue vodn 4oyes wWao INY/SIY 10 S180 O SIYEUN ST SUS/AY 12 PATRIIXOIGE 05 3¢ 01 50 ‘Doneqims:p & eoaoid
10 S5TIED OF P 30TPUOD YODS GOTM T} SICUBISUIMALS I9PUN JANPUOS LISPX0SIP ISUATIRC 10 “Po] AJQeHOSESIIn “Snessioq *auejold YUuasaply ‘SAISTIgR “1e]ola 01 oSNpUT 01 Uosisd Alle 10} [IYAMEBIUT 34 [[BYS 1] ToapuoT) [Buosiad




CITY OF BERLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEEETING
STAFF REPORT

TO: Common Council

FROM: Brittani Majeskie, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer
AGENDA ITEM: Publishing Minute Summaries

MEETING DATE: November 4, 2025

BACKGROUND:

After minutes are approved at Common Council meetings, staff creates a summary of the approved
minutes to be published in the Berlin Journal. Wisconsin State Statutes §§ 62.09(11)(b) and 62.11(4)(a)
dictate the publishing of the proceedings of the Common Council to be published in the official
newspaper as a class 1 notice.

Wis. Stat §§ 62.11(4)(a) says, “Proceedings of the council shall be published in the newspaper designated
under s. 985.06 as a class 1 notice, under ch. 985. The proceedings for the purpose of publication shall
include the substance of every official action taken by the governing body.”

Wis. Stat §§ 62.09(11)(b) says, “The clerk shall attend the meetings of the council and keep a full record
of its proceedings.”

Previously staff were sending lengthy Common Council minute summaries for publication that included
summaries of discussions on each agenda item as well as records of all official actions, motions, who
seconded, voice votes and roll-call votes.

Moving forward, staff will be limiting Common Council minute summaries for publication to include
records of all official actions, motions, who seconded, voice votes and roll-call votes. Limiting the text
sent for publication to what is required by Wisconsin Statutes will reduce the publication costs incurred
by the City. The current municipality rate at the Berlin Journal is $16 per inch, per column.

Staff will continue to write detailed minutes after each Common Council meeting and store electronic
and hard copy records of the proceedings. These records will also be maintained on the City of Berlin
website and visible for anyone wishing to view, as well as be available for pick-up at City Hall.

Included is a copy of the detailed minutes from September 23, 2025 and the corresponding minute
summary sent for publication for reference.




SPECIAL COMMON COUNCIL MINUTES
2026-2030 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN and 2026 BUDGET WORKSHOP and RELATED
AGENDA
SEPTEMBER 23, 2025 5:30PM

1. Call to order/Roll Call ar 5:30pm by Mayor Burgess. Present were Alderpersons Boeck, Hill,
Nigbor, Przybyl, Sorenson, and Stobbe. Also present were City Administrator, Jessi Balcom;
Deputy Clerk-Treasurer, Debra Theil; EMS Director, Evan VandenLangenberg; Street
Superintendent, Scott Zabel; Chief of Police, Brian Pulvermacher; Planning and Development
Director, Tim Ludolph; and Library Director, Chris Kalupa

2. Seat Virtual Attendees (if necessary) - None

3. 2026 — 2030 Capital Improvement Plan — Presentation of draft plan and discussion. Adam
Ruechel of BAIRD presented the City of Berlin 2026-2030 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). He
explained the CIP is a tool that provides the City with a long-range plan for development and
budget planning. Within the CIP review, Ruechel summarized the City’s total funding by sources,
summarized department yearly costs, reviewed an example Project or Program/Description &
Justification from Public Works, and reviewed the CIP Capital Expenditure Beyond 5-year
Period Ruechel suggesied the Council review the CIP, ask the City Administrator questions to
Jforward to BAIRD, and look forward to adopting the CIP in October. Ruechel clarified that
adopting the plan does not mean the Council is committing to completing all projects in the CIP.
Ruechel reviewed hypothetical borrowing scenario options which show existing debt service, the
hypothetical debt with annual interest and principal payment, hypothetical fiture borrowings, the
total combined debl service that layers in additional borrowings, and the total debt total
combined mill rate.

4. 2026 Budget — Staff presentation of draft departmental budgets and discussion. City
Administrator Balcom highlighted two proposed wage increases of 1% and 3%, and confirmed
the Council can set that rate to any amount they choose. Balcom mentioned that there was a cost
savings due to insurance changes to be added. She added that the budget draft assumes the
recycling fee being moved to a line item on the tax bill, and includes the wheel tax that was
approved by the Council. Scott Zabel, Street Superintendent, reviewed DPW expenditures in the
Jollowing accounts: Public Works General Streets, Public Works Maintenance, Snow & Ice
Control, Street Lights, Sidewalk Repair & Maintenance, Storm Sewers Maintenance, Municipal
Building, Building and Grounds, Garbage & Refuse, Recycling, Weed & Nuisance Control, and
Cemetery. Zabel reviewed DPW Revenues which include the motor vehicle registration fee
revenues and anticipated recycling fee special charge. Next Zabel reviewed expenditures and
revenues in the Parks and Swimming Pool accounts. Discussion on the elimination of the hanging
baskets downtown due to the costs and maintenance, and the possibility of groups sponsoring
them. Discussion that the budget assumes the pool will not open next year, but covers costs of
utilities. Tim Ludolph, Planning and Development Director, reviewed Econoniic Development
expenditures and revenues in the following accounts: Public Housing, Assessment, Urban
Development, Economic Development, Land Use Planning, and Zoning. He verified the Land Use
Planning account was down 830,000 due to the plan needing to be completed every several years
per State Statutes. City Administrator Balcom reviewed expenditures and revenues of the Fire
Department and Emergency Management accounts. Balcom explained that the emergency
management position used to be a shared position with the county, but now the fire chief is, or
designates, the emergency management coovdinator. Discussion on combining the Emergency




Muanagement and Fire Department accounts, but Balcom needs to confirm contracts with other
municipalities. Brian Pulvermacher, Chief of Police, reviewed expenditures and revenues in the
Police Department and Police Uniform Allowance accounts. Pulvermacher and Balcom
confirmed that Professional Staff for city prosecution attorney fees would be included in the
Special Legal Council account, not in the Police Department budget. Pulvermacher also noted
thai most police staff will get a 3% wage increase as it is part of the union contract. Chris
Kalupa, Berlin Public Library Direcior, reviewed Library expenditures and revenues. Evan
VandenLangenberg, EMS Director, reviewed Ambulance expenditures. Balcom confirmed that
Ambulance expenditures do not impact the levy as EMS fees are contracted with and reimbursed
by Green Lake County. She added that there will be a meeting with Green Lake County on
9/29/25 to propose adding an additional EMT and moving EMS staff to protected status in WRS.
VandenLangenberg confirmed that protected status is not union related, but provides disability
benefits for employees. City Administrator Balcom reviewed Senior Center expenditures and
revenues in the Senior Center, Sentor Center Transportation, and Senior Center Nutrition
accounts. There was discussion about donations to the Serior Center showing $0 in revenues
although donations are made. Balcom confirmed that donations for meals go to Green Lake
County as all meals are donations. Debra Thiel explained the Senior Center has an additional
checkbook account where donations are deposited that the Cify does not account for. Discussion
on updating procedures for that account. City Administrator Balcom reviewed Berlin Community
Development Corporation expenditures and revenues. City Administrator Balcom reviewed
expenditures and revenues of the Administrator, City Clerk, and Elections accounts. City
Administrator Balcom reviewed expenditures and revenues for the following accounts: City
Attorney, Special Legal Counsel, Independent Audit, Property & Liability Insurance, Sealer of
Weighis & Measures, Building Inspection/Code Enforcement, Animal Pound Fees, Employee
Benefits, Central Duplicating, lllegal Taxes & Funds, Contingency, Hydrant Rental, Taxi,
Historical Society Museum, Fireworks, Media Outreach/Cable TV, Debt Service, and Transfer to
Other Funds. City Administrator Balcom reviewed expenditures for Council & Commissions and
Mayor accounts. City Administrator Balcom explained that the estimated allowable levy increase
Jfor 2026 is $4,000 and explained the only other way to increase the levy is through borrowing.
Discussion on budget impacts of potential employee wage increases, the City receiving savings
due to switching health care insurance coverage, and employees increasing their health
insurance premium share beginning in 2026. Balcom discussed cost increases fo City employees
including the WRS increase from 6.95% to 7.2% to be paid by both the City and employees, and
employees paying approximately double in health insurance premiums.

A motion to recess was made by Alderperson Hill at 6:54pm with a second by Alderperson
Nighor. Voice vote carried. A motion to reconvene was made by Alderperson Przybyl at 7:00pm
with a second by Alderperson Sorenson. Voice vote carried.

Update on 2024-year end audit. City administrator Balcom explained the audit has been worked
‘on since the beginning of the year and reported that as of this afternoon the auditing firm said the
completed audit was close, but not done. She discussed the reason for the incomplete audit is both
on the shoulders of the auditing firm and City due to challenges caused by the software change
Jfrom Banyon to Accufund. She explained that the City is required to file the audil and budget io
EMMA by 9/27/25, isn't certain that the deadline will be met, but hopes that preliminary numbers
can be filed. Adam Ruechel of BAIRD explained continuing disclosure is needed when debt is
taken out, and the need to report the current year budget, report operating data information, and
report audited financial statements. He explained that if that information is not submitted by the
deadline, then an event notice will be filed which can affect investor interest in the City and affect




the City’s rating agency. He explained that continued inability to meet deadlines could result in
the City receiving a downgrade. Ruechel is hoping to get draft information filed by the deadline
and finalized documentation filed by the end of the year.

2026 Recycling Fee to be moved from the Levy to a Special Charge on the Property Tax bill.
Staff presentation and discussion: a. Update to Municipal Fee Schedule, b. Update to Cify
Ordinances, and c. Notification to ineligible properties/parcels. City Administrator Balcom
explained that to move forward with iransferring the recycling fee from the levy to a special
charge on the property tax bill the City needs to update the municipal fee schedule, update the
City Ordinances, and notify anyone who is receiving services but is ineligible. She explained that
the bill from the Waste Management contract is a legacy contract, and over the years records of
who is receiving service became inaccurate. Waste Management is in the process of completing a
service qudit using geolocation. Discussion on not moving forward with the special charge unless
records of services received are 100% accurate. Discussion on commercial and multi-family
properties needing notification if they are not eligible for services. Balcom confirmed that
garbage fees would remain on the levy, and only recycling fees could be pulled to a special
charge.

Request for Proposals for Municipal Court Attorney services. RECOMMENDATION.: Issue an
RFP for Municipal Court Aftorney services for services to commence upon 60 day notice to
current provider. City Administrator Balcom recommends the City go out to RFP for Municipal
Court Attorney services. In September, the City received invoices from Chier Law Office for the
months of March through July for municipal court and City of Berlin Fees. Discussion on the
benefits of going oul to RFP and the benefits of keeping consistent service. Discussion on
reviewing the forfeiture deposit schedule. Matthew Chier of Chier Law Office and City of Berlin
Municipal Court Attorney, suggested increasing the base forfeiture schedule to align more with
Circuit Court costs to increase revenue. Brian Pulvermacher, Chief of Police, discussed the cost
differences between tickets issued by Green Lake County officers and City of Berlin officers.
Discussion on the differences between Municipal Court and Circuit Court. Discussion on the 60
day notice by either the City or by Chier to terminate services. Chier explained that there would
be transition time and cost due to Municipal Court trial dates being scheduled out into March of
2026 and the logistics of a new Municipal Court attorney. Discussion on the delay in the receipt
of bills from Chier to the City of Berlin. Chier explained that he was behind due to his
overcommitment to the City of Berlin work. Discussion asking Chier for timely billing and more
detailed billing. Discussion on scheduling an RFP at the end of 2026 for Municipal Court
attorney services and looking into changing the forfeiture fee schedule and revenues in the
meantime. Balcom confirmed that legal fees for development agreements, zoning, and other
ordinances that can be billed, are being billed oul.

Short-term borrowing options to balance budget. City Administrator discussed that the only
options for raising the levy are increased growth or borrowing. The CIP proposes long-term
borrowing for major long-term projects. Shori-term borrowing could be used fo increase the levy
Jfor 2025-2026. Money is borrowed in the current year and put onto next year’s levy as debt
service is put onto the levy. The borrowing needs to be done by December 15" to be put on the
levy for next year. Once the City receives the first tax payments for 2026, the loan would be
repaid with the interest payment. A loan of $300,000 would have an interest payment of an
estimated $3,700. Balcom explained when the levy increases, the mill rate increases, unless the
value increases as it is a two-part equation, Balcom estimates that for every $100,000 in short-
term borrowing, the mill rate increases by about $0.03. Discussion on local mill rates and the




City of Berlin mill rate being comparable even with a potential increase. Discussion on fitture
decisions on borrowing, the CIP, and structuring payments. Discussion on including smaller
projects into the short-term borrowing for this vear. Alderperson Hill discussed concerns about
the pool not being included in the CIP. Balcom clarified her impression to be that the Council
agreed that the pool would no longer be owned by the City and therefore was not added as a
capital project to the CIP. Discussion to include a pool discussion onio a fiture agenda.
Discussion on budgel and borrowing timeline; Balcom suggested that in October the Council
discuss what CIP projects to complete and how much to borrow, and in November the Council
adopt a final budget,

Adjourn. 4 motion to adjourn was made by Alderperson Hill with a second by Alderperson
Przybyl. Voice vote carried. The meeting adjowrned at 8:08pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted by,
Brittani Majeskie, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer




SPECIAL, COMMON COUNCIL MINUTES SUMMARY
20206-2030 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN and
2026 BUDGET WORKSHOP and RELATEDAGENDA
SEPTEMBER 23, 2025 5:30PM
Meeting called to order at 5:30pm by Mayor Burgess. Roll Call: Ald. Boeck, Hill, Nigbor, Przybyl,
Sorenson, and Stobbe present, Also present: City Admin., Jessi Balcom; Dep. Clerk-Treasurer, Debra
Thiel; EMS Director, Evan VandenLangenberg; Street Supt., Scott Zabel; Chief of Police, Brian
Pulvermacher; Planning and Development Director, Tim Ludolph; and Library Director, Chris Kalupa.
2026 — 2030 Capital Improvement Plan. Discussion held.
2026 Budget. Discussion held.
M/S by Ald. Hill/Nigbor to recess at 6:54pm. Voice vote carried. M/S by Ald. Przybyi/Sorenson to
reconvene at 7:00pm. Voice vote carried.
Update on 2024-year end audit. Discussion held.
2026 Recycling Fee to be moved from the Levy to a Special Charge on the Property Tax bill. Discussion
held. :
Request for Proposals for Municipal Court Atty. Services. Discussion held.
Short-term borrowing options to balance budget. Discussion held.
M/S by Ald. Hill/Przybyl to adjourn. Voice vote carried. Meeting adjourned at 8:08pm.
*This is a summary of the minutes. To read the minutes in detail or watch the recorded meeting visit
www.cityofberlin.net, or obtain a copy at Berlin City Hall.




CITY OF BERLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEEETING
STAFF REPORT

TO: Common Council

FROM: Jessi Balcom, City Administrator

AGENDA ITEM: Update regarding Request for Proposals for Professional Auditing Services
MEETING DATE: November 4, 2025

BACKGROUND

The City requested proposals for Professional Auditing Services on August 22, 2025.
The RFP noted that the City is looking for auditing of the City’s financial records for five successive fiscal
years beginning with the year ending December 31, 2025.

Per the request, proposals were due to the City by October 20 and the contract will be awarded by the
Common Council on November 11, 2025 and the City will notify the selected Firm by November 24,
2025,

Currently, Deputy Clerk Thiel, Alderperson Stobbe and | are reviewing the RFPs per the evaluation
criteria listed in the RPE. Following this review, a recommendation will be brought forward for the
Council’s consideration.




TO: Common Council

FROM:
AGENDA ITEM:
MEETING DATE:

BACKGROUND

CITY OF BERLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEEETING

STA

FF REPORT

Jessi Balcom, City Administrator
Budget preparation update
November 4, 2025

The public hearing notice for the 2026 budget was published in the paper on October 23, 2025 and is
posted at City hall, the Senior Center, the Library and on the City’s website.

NOTICE GF BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING
©ITY OF BERLIN

On Tuesday, Novembar 1, 2025 al §:30 P.M. a Public Heasing vil ba conducted bafora the Comman Council i the Council Chambers *
of the Berlin City Hal. The purpase ol lhis hearing ts o restve public comment an Lhs proposed 2026 budget, which I summatized bekaw:

 Adopled Proposed # of
Budget Hudget Budget
2028 2026 . Chanas
GENERAL FUND REVERUES BUDGET o ) ’ )
Praperty fax Lewy . . : FL4d091 | SLIELEX 1226%.
Transkr In fom debt service : $203,536
Tax Equivalent 5190,000 $150,000 0.00%
Other Taxes 812,000 $9.000 33.33%
Speciat Assessments $2,937 $0 0.00%
ITERGOVERNMENTAl. REVENUES H :
Stale Sirared Revenues. ensis s am
Highvay Ald §265,703 $207,333 11.90%
Vibrary Ald 5122474 £120,698 .28%
Fedetal & State Tax Grant $ITO574 595,000 -4T.30%
Senor Crizens Senices $54354 44507 -17.58%
Other Intergavemmental Revenues §75.735 363,501 -16.15%
LIGENSES, & PERNITS 76,150 72,850 2.28%
FINES & FORFEITURES $62,850, 360,750 334%
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES $159,15¢ 3201750 A%
INTERGCVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR SERVIGE L0718 178738 -18.93%
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 5120830 93,5356 27.38%
QTHER FINANGING SOURCES 0 @
From Nor-Lapse Furkis R 30
TFR fom Fund 15 5 50
TFR fom Fund 13 5 0
Pioceeds fom Bomening #® 30
{OT Profec] Finaneing 0 50
Suiplus Funds IRilzed 0 kY
TIF Repaymenl of Advarces % W
TOTAL GENFRAL FURD REVENUES $6210553  §B.767.53 8.5T%
Rdopted Proposed
GENERAL. FUND EXPENDITURES BUBGET ] 2035 2028 : HChange
Goraral Gows mmant 1012152 $854,409 452%
Puablic Sakty $1,879,006 51,888,541 0.56% x
Public Works $1615582  $1,625.00 0.65% x
Healh & Human Senices 5274,080 $250,676 5.25% X
Cufture & Recreation $BEG.STT. 5704.677 -1B.6B% x
Cansenalion/Community Dawelopment 358,484 118,142 “25.45% x
Cantingaacy $20.000 550,000 150.00% x
Dabt Senice (Non-TIF related) $695,003  $4,185.043 30.03% %
Capilal Projeats {on TIF related $44,000 50 A00.00% x
Jora $6,668,534 8,767,534 1.51%
Prellmicary Audit: Edimated Peoposed - Propssad : Esimated
FUND BALANCES 12352024 ol/e 1125 Eipences  Revenues - {m3ins
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS UNAUDITED : : : :
ConeigiFund $4024300 $he50.0%9  SeTOTSa4 86707534 §3.d60088
Special Revenue Funds X . . :
985 Relohing Loan Fuad i3 303675.5 381,675 52,000 $78,300.  5457,975
Senfor Cenler Spectd Accounts Fund 03 SL17 8 S1.117 0 30 51117
Tutal Special Rewnue Funds ) ; Tssdrer 5 432792 2,000 $78,300  $509.092
Dt Senlse Funds 0 a $1.165043  $1,165043 0
Capital Project Funds 860792 81260092 S150000  $YS0000,  $1.265.707
TF FUNDS 3 252312 I8 (d1mo) 8 ALz % AL
2025 A o [ 0266 2026 Ray | 2028EB
TIF #01E Fund 49 8 (12791000 § (9.227.00) §  (B310.00) 5 15769.00° § (277500}
TiF #02E Fund 50 3 35393005 3530300 § - 3 - 13 3539300
T #15 Funded 3 22970000 § 405,598.00 & (13Z574.00) § 2222100} 5 295,187.00
TIF#1E H B ] ~UUS (14662300 5 15636005 T 156260
TIF 8T 3 - - - % - s -
12628 anding baisnce 5 T5ZHZ00 § 431, 70400 § (141,891.00) § 37,002.00 ; § 527.805.00
FIDUCARY FUNDS $2,353,603 $101.000 36,000, $228B.503
Nonexpendable-tibrary Endavnient Pancipsl Fund 357,630 % 57,630 $1,000 1,000 $57,630
“Expandabla -Library Trusi Fund SLEN.T66. 8 2,026,673 $50,000 $36.000. $2.011,673
Espendable-Cemelery Thist Fund T7E07 5 464287 350,000 50 $iid,207
T Frapased
Tax Reventte By Fund 2026 2028
Ganaral Fand 52434002 $2.732889
Caphat Profect Fund $44.000 El
Dedl Sénfce Fund (Hon-TIF) 5896003 $1,165,043
TF Funds {city portion estimate} $104,413 33,732
34,031 304

53,470,508

A copy of the proposed budgat can be Mewed at (he City Clerk's office belwean the hours of 7:30 am and 4:30 P.H. 1-F. No new
senices have been included in this proposed bixdgal, Ghen undar my hand end seat of Ihe Cily #his 2d day of Oclober, 2025. .
City Clerk, Jessi Balvom

Anticipated levy: Apportioned $2,732,529
{Total Amount — Use on Mill Rate
Worksheet $2,737,346.03)

Anticipated City Mill Rate: $6.19/51000

Resolution 25-12 authorizing the
borrowing of $293,536

2026 Budget Impact

2024 Levy 2025 Levy Increase
Levy $  2,436,21293  $ 2,737,346.03 $301,133.10
Miil Rate $5.56/$1000value $6.19/$1000 value . $ 0,63 .
:Estimated City ‘
‘Portion of Tax
Bilt
$100000home  § 556 - § - 619 § 63
$200000home  § 1112 - § 1238 § 126
$300000 home  § 1,668 § 1,857 % 189

The Public Hearing for the 2026 Budget
will be held on November 11, 2025, at
6:30PM.




